
 
 
 
OUR MISSION IS TO PROVIDE EXCEPTIONAL PUBLIC SERVICES THAT  

                                                 ENHANCE THE EXPERIENCE OF LIVING, WORKING AND VISITING ADA. 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

A Copy of the above information is available upon request M-F 8AM-5PM at the Ada Township Clerk’s Office, excluding Holidays 

If you would like to be on the Ada Township e-mail information list please inform the Clerk or e-mail the Clerk at jsmith@adatownshipmi.com.  Persons with 
special needs, as defined in the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the Ada Township Clerk or call the Michigan Relay Center 

TDD # 1-800-649-3777. 
 

                                       TENTATIVE AGENDA   
                                        ADA TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING                          

                                         MONDAY, JANUARY 14, 2019, 7:00 P.M. 
                                      ADA TOWNSHIP HALL 

                                     7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE 
 

              
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 A.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 B.   MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 C.   NOTE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT & ABSENT 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
III.          GENERAL TOWNSHIP BUSINESS  
 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES & ACCEPT REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS UNDER CONSENT 
 AGENDA  

A. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES:  
 1.  TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES – DECEMBER 10, 2018 

               B.    RECEIVE AND FILE VARIOUS REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS: 
                              1.  GVMC TRANSPORTATION NEWSLETTER – FALL, 2018 
  2.  COMCAST UPDATE LETTER – 12/3/18 AND 12/19/18 
  3.  FIRE DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY REPORT – 11/18 
  4.  TOWNSHIP BUILDING REPORT – 11/18 
  5.  PARK DIRECTOR’S REPORT – 12/18 
  6.  PARKS, RECREATION AND LAND PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES – 11/8/18 
  7.  ADA HISTORICAL SOCIETY MINUTES – 11/8/18 
  8.  HOPE NETWORK TRANSIT SERVICES – 11/18 
  9.  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) MINUTES – 12/4/18 
              10.  PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – 9/20/18 
              11.  GRAND RAPIDS BUSINESS JOURNAL – 12/18 
              12.  PROGRESSIVE AE – PROGRESS MINUTES – SETTLERS GROVE PROJECT – 12/12/18 
       
IV.          APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 A.   TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
 
 V. PUBLIC COMMENT   
 
VI. BOARD COMMENT  
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. LIBRARY/COMMUNITY CENTER FUNDING 
B. FUNDING REQUEST FROM HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR MUSEUM MANAGER 
C. ROSELLE PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECTS 

1. NORTH TRAIL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
2. PICNIC AREA & PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

D. RESOLUTION R-011419-1, GRAND RAPIDS TRIATHLON ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST 
E. BOARDS & COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
F. RECOMMENDATION TO FILL TRUSTEE VACANCY  

  
IX. OPPORTUNITY FOR ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
X.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

mailto:jsmith@adatownshipmi.com


 
 

ADA TOWNSHIP BOARD MEETING 
MINUTES 

December 10, 2018 
 
 
Meeting was called to order by Supervisor Haga at 7:00 p.m.  Members present:  Supervisor Haga, Clerk Smith, 
Treasurer Moran, Trustees Hurwitz, Jacobs, LeBlanc, and Proos.  Also present:  Planning Director Ferro, Parks 
Director Fitzpatrick, DDA Coordinator Hilbrands, and approximately 11 community members.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Hurwitz, to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 
 
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 
Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator, gave an update on Beers at the Bridge and Brats and Bonfires.  Jory Little and 
Eileen McNeil from SeyferthPR also added some information.  Trustee Proos asked about financial information.  
Treasurer Moran stated that in the past few years costs have been reduced by 40% and revenue has been 
increased by 20%.  McNeil clarified that the Facebook information was relayed to Katie Pirog to add to the Village’s 
page.  Supervisor Haga added he would attempt to get this video added to the Facebook page. 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Board Meeting Minutes  
Township Board Minutes - 11/26/18 
Receive and File Various Reports/Communications  
1. Improved Assessing Proposal Wins MTA Support - 5/3/18; 2. Accident Fund Group Dividend Program - 11/8/18; 
3. Comcast Updates - 11/18/18; 4. Treasurer’s Investment Report - 10/31/18; 5. Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA 
Minutes - 11/13/18; 6. Preemption Legislation Senate Bill 1188 - 12/3/18; 7. Social Media Recap - 11/18.  Moved 
by Proos, supported by LeBlanc, to approve the Minutes and accept the Reports and Communications 
under the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF WARRANTS 
 
ADA TOWNSHIP GENERAL WARRANTS 
Treasurer Moran presented the following Hand Checks: #101 $9,482.25; #205 $1,259.82; #214 $1,700.17; #590 
$4,356.93; #591 $918.12; #592 $378.86.  Total all Hand Checks: $18,456.15.  Warrants: #101 $47,172.55; #205 
$4,072.66; #211 $461.80; #214 $9,237.97; #248 $1,103.00; #590 $105,385.81; #591 $103,707.90; #592 $98.55.  
Total all Warrants: $271,240.24.  Total All Check and Warrants: $289,696.39. Moved by LeBlanc, supported by 
Jacobs, to approve the Warrant Report for December 10, 2018, in the total amount of $289,696.39.  Roll Call:  
Yes - LeBlanc, Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, Moran, Haga, Smith; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION 11 - SETTLER’S GROVE PARK 
Mike Oezer, Progressive AE, explained the project.  Moved by Proos, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay 
Application 11 to Katerberg VerHage in the amount of $53,345.24.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, Proos, 
LeBlanc, Smith, Haga, Moran; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION 12 - SETTLER’S GROVE PARK 
Mike Oezer, explained the progress of the project.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay 
Application 12 to Katerberg VerHage, in the amount of $30,947.40. There were questions by the board about 
additional work and additional pay applications for the winter.  Oezer replied there may be a little work done in 
December and January and then completion in the spring.  Roll Call:  Yes - Jacobs, Proos, LeBlanc, Hurwitz, 
Smith, Moran, Haga; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 

DRAFT 



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of December 10, 2018 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
PAY APPLICATION 7 AND FINAL - AVERILL HISTORICAL MUSEUM PROJECT 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Engineering, explained the completion of the project and recommended pay application.  Moved 
by LeBlanc, supported by Jacobs, to approve Pay Application 7 to JKB Construction in the amount of 
$29,952.05.  There were questions and comments regarding the irrigation and who would do that in the spring.  
Moved by Proos, supported by Smith, to amend the motion to pay $26,950.05 to JKB Construction.  It was 
noted a corrected pay application would be needed.  Roll Call:   Yes - Proos, LeBlanc, Hurwitz, Jacobs, Smith, 
Haga, Moran; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION 4 - FIRE STATION BUNK ROOM AND STORAGE ADDITION PROJECT 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, explained the request.  Moved by LeBlanc, supported by Hurwitz, to approve 
Pay Application 4 to Thomet Construction, in the amount of $66,742.00.  Roll Call:  Yes - LeBlanc, Proos, 
Hurwitz, Jacobs, Moran, Smith, Haga; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
CHANGE ORDER 1 - TRAIL CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIRS 
Steve Groenenboom, Moore & Bruggink, explained the change order, which includes $16,000 in liquidated 
damages.  Moved by Jacobs, supported by LeBlanc, to approve the change order reducing the contract by 
$16,385.40.  There was discussion about the project, specifically focusing on the liquidated damages.  Trustee 
Proos talked about the lessons learned from this project, including the need for strict dates, holding the engineers 
responsible, always needing timelines with penalties, and the need to be holding contractors to a higher standard, 
stating this would result in better contracts.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, LeBlanc, Proos, Smith, Moran, 
Haga; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
PAY APPLICATION 2 - TRAIL CONSTRUCTION AND REPAIRS 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by LeBlanc, to approve Pay Application 2 for the Trail Construction, to Jordan 
Intercoastal, in the amount of $121,702.11.  Roll Call:  Yes - Proos, LeBlanc, Jacobs, Hurwitz, Smith, Haga, 
Moran; No - 0; Absent - 0.  Motion carried. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 

BOARD COMMENT 
 
All board members commented on the great asset that Paul LeBlanc has been on the board and wished him well 
in the future.  Staff members Mark Fitzpatrick and Jim Ferro also commented on LeBlanc’s value to Ada.  LeBlanc 
stated his experience with Ada has been a privilege. 
Trustee Smith responded to Trustee Proos’ inquiry from the last board meeting regarding the costs for election, with 
a listing of the costs for the November, 2018, election. 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

There was no Unfinished Business. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

TRUSTEE LEBLANC RESIGNATION NOTICE - MOTION TO ACCEPT 
Moved by Proos, supported by Moran, to accept the resignation of Trustee Paul LeBlanc, effective 
December 11, 2018.  Motion carried. 
 
PROCESS TO FILL TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE VACANCY 
Supervisor Haga explained the process, and the board discussed and adjusted the proposed dates.  Moved by 
Proos, supported by Jacobs, to adopt the schedule.  Motion carried. 
 



Ada Township Board Meeting 
Minutes of December 10, 2018 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
RESOLUTION R-121018-1 - RESOLUTION TO DETERMINE THE TOWNSHIP BUDGET PREPARATION 
SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/20 
Supervisor Haga presented the proposed budget preparation schedule.  The board discussed the dates and 
suggested some changes.  Moved by Moran, supported by Proos, to adopt R-121018-1, which is the 
Resolution to Determine the Township Budget Preparation Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019/20, with the date 
changes.  Roll Call:  Yes - Hurwitz, Jacobs, LeBlanc, Proos, Smith, Haga, Moran; No - 0; Absent - 0.  
Resolution adopted. 
 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Kent Sheriff’s Deputy Eric Toonstra explained he has been working on battery issues with the speed boards, 
obtained new brackets, and is looking at enforcement to go along with the signs. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________    ______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith                  Date 
Ada Township Clerk 



































Ada Township Parks & Recreation Department 

Park Director’s Report 

For December 13, 2018 

Submitted by Parks & Recreation Director Mark Fitzpatrick 

Updates on Administrative Items 

Staffing Updates 

*Our next transition is to fill the vacant Recreation Program Assistant postion. This is a year-round,

30 hour per week position to support community, family and youth programs.  Advertising for the

position should be posted next week.

*Kent County Parks Director Roger Sabine has retired.  The Operations Director Dan Delooff is

serving as the interim Director.  dan.delooff@kentcountymi.gov

Planning Initiatives

*Copies of the Recreation Needs Assessment report submitted by RJM Design can be found via the

following link: https://we.tl/t-r1bfWyextb

*The new Kent County Parks Master Plan for parks, trails and open spaces is available via the link:

https://www.kentcountyparks.org/info/2019-2023MasterPlan.php

*Budget planning for FY 2019-20 will go on during the rest of December and into mid-January.

*A new committee is reviewing design parameters for all entry and location signs in the Township.

This includes signs at all the parks and preserves.

*The Community Center/Library project is reviewing the alternative of having the facility back on

the north side of Headley Street.

*Identifying projects for the Capital Improvements Plan has been updated.  These still have to be

reviewed by the CIP Committee.  Highlights for the parks, preserves and trails include:

• Fund 211  Non-motorized trail improvements.  Details to be submitted by Moore & Bruggink. 

• Fund 208  Roselle Park north section non-paved trail improvements – the project has started  

   in FY 18-19 with the remainder to be in FY 19-20. 

• Fund 213  Carl Creek Wetland Preserve improvements – remains in the status of  

 “undetermined year” for implementation. 

• Fund 213  Leonard Field Park Improvements – revised plans to include a master plan process  

  in 2019, then site improvements done as a full project or phased in after that. 

• Fund 213  Kent County Chief Hazy Cloud Park contributions may shift one year.  Kent  

 County Parks is working through the purchasing process with MI DNR. 

• Fund 214  Roselle Park Improvements – next phase including gazebo, picnic area, parking lot  

  and playground. Targeted for FY 2020-21 with DNR grant proposal due in 2019. 

• Fund 214  Ada Park Improvements – proposing a paving project of widening parking spaces  

   near the driveway and creating a paved trail connection from the Ada 2 ballfield to  

   the trail on Buttrick. 

• Fund 214   Capital Purchases -future replacement of current trucks – to add into the CIP plan. 

III. B. 5

mailto:dan.delooff@kentcountymi.gov
https://we.tl/t-r1bfWyextb
https://www.kentcountyparks.org/info/2019-2023MasterPlan.php


   

 

Updates on Parks, Preserves, Trails and Related Projects 
 

Ada Township Park 
 

*The projects for the paved trail along Buttrick drive and the paved paths within the arboretum have 

finished for the winter.  Some details, clean up and restoration work will be needed in the spring. 

*The shelter and gazebo facilities were winterization November 1. 

*Nets for the tennis and pickleball courts have been taken down for the season.   

*We have started taking Shelter and Gazebo reservations for the 2019 season. 

*We are still waiting on Midstate Security to repair the control box so our alarm system is back to normal.   

*We are having an electrician assess the office building for grounding and protection from electrical storms. 

*We are getting estimates to upgrade lights in the parking lots and garage to LED systems to save energy. 

*The gates are to be reviewed for short term repairs, long-term function and replacement needs. 

 

Roselle Park 
 

*The improvements project for the north section non-paved trails is moving forward.  Currently we are 

working on getting a dirt pile moved, wetland delineations conducted. and a proposal from OCBA to 

administrate the project.  Construction phase to be next summer. 

*We are still planning for the next development phase of the park is to be in FY 2020-21. That project 

includes a new shelter/gazebo structure, an accessible picnic area, renovating the parking lot by the silos 

and additions to the playground. A DNR grant proposal is due in March of 2019.  We are working with 

OCBA for a proposal to administrate this project. 

*The elections were held in the meeting room last month. That was busy but went well. 

*The Rules Committee has been working on the rules and procedures for private groups renting out the 

Roselle Park meeting room.  That is getting closer to being set.   The Committee will focus next on the 

updating the rules that pertain to all parks and preserves. 

*There is beaver activity in the north section with a number of trees being cut and some dam making which 

adds to the flooding.  Park staff are opening the dammed-up area and monitoring the situation. 

*A volunteer recognition and “thank you” luncheon was held at the park early December. 

 

Leonard Field Park 
 

*The parking lot improvement project was completed this November.  These is still some follow-up work 

for the spring including striping parking spaces. 

*We are adjusting our CIP plans to reflect development of a park master plan in 2019 and then to do other 

major upgrades after that.  Major maintenance items will still be done in the meantime. 

 

Riverfront Park  
 

*We are no longer referring to the new park as Settler’s Park.  For the short term we are referring to it 

as Riverside Park.  At some point in the late winter or spring there will be a naming ceremony where it 

will be formally referred to as “Legacy Park”. 

*The contractors are to put in plant shoots along the bank this December.  Those are expected to grow 

into bushes to stabilize the bank.  Completion of the paved trail is postponed until spring. 

*The final designs for the amphitheater/stage area are still under review.  The construction phase for 

that section is now planned for next spring. 

*For the winter, the trail in the center of the park and the stairs have been closed off. 

 

Grand River Natural Area 
 

*The contractor was not been able to secure the DEQ permit in time to complete the trail repair project this 

fall.  That project is being moved to the spring and will be reflected in the CIP. 

*Basic maintenance has been kept up on this site.   

*A safety fence remains up at the erosion area. 

 



 

 

Updates on Parks, Preserves, Trails and Related Projects continued … 

 

Carl Creek Crossings Preserve 

 

*Park staff and volunteers continue with regular maintenance and stewardship work.   

*As part of the restoration efforts, park staff and volunteers have been slowly adding native plants and seeds 

to the area where the old house was located and the section facing Fulton.  Most of these have been donated. 

*The site still gets daily use by visitors. 

*We will not be plowing the gravel parking lot on snow days in the winter. 

 

Carl Creek Wetland Preserve 
 

*The site development project remains on hold.  The timing, funding and extent of development for the 

project is to be re-considered. 

 

Knapp Corners Preserve  
 

*Issues related to the new entry sign have not been resolved. Follow up with Trevor from the 

VIRIDIS Design Group and input by the new sign committee will help. 

*Landscape improvements will resume in the spring. 

 

Bike Paths / Non-Motorized Trails 

 

*The contractor, Jordan Intercostal, did not fully completed all the work required for the bike paths system 

by the deadlines set for this winter.   The trails are now usable and open, but a series of areas will need to 

be cleaned up or re-done in the spring. Moore & Bruggink in managing this project. 

*Moore & Bruggink is working on a proposal for trail repairs for next year as part of the CIP process. 

*We contracted out a service to power wash several boardwalks along the trail to reduce the slipperiness.  

We will be setting up contracts to do more of this kind of maintenance work. 

*We are working with the staff at REGIS to better utilize there GIS and mapping services for trail 

management and maintenance needs. 

 

Updates on Recreation and Education Programs 
 

*The Recreation Needs Assessment provided us with a lot of information to incorporate into our planning 

process for future facilities and programs.  We aim to have a framework outlined in mid-January 

summarizing our ideas on implementing the recommendations outlined within it.  We have started 

discussions with community partners on means to implements some of the goals including FHPS, AHS, 

KDL, ABA and the Community Church. 

*We intentionally reduced our winter program offerings this year so we can focus on maintenance project 

and planning needs.  We will be offing a family-based program each month, but most others will wait until 

spring to resume. 

*We are reviewing a number of recreation software alternatives to aid us in managing our recreation 

programs, databases and facility operations.  We aim to budget for a new system in the FY 2019-20. 

*We provided support for the November 30 “Bridge Lighting” and “Tinsel, Treats and Trolleys” event and 

December 1 Santa’s Parade in the Village and the Chili Cook-off at the Community Church 

*Softball leagues and tournaments are schedule in for 2019.  Registration for teams will start in February. 

*AYSO has requested to rent the soccer fields again for the spring and a summer session too. 

*Zig-zag Ultimate is setting up facility rentals at Ada Park for youth ultimate frisbee events. 

*The GR Triathlon is set for next June. 

*The Kid’s Garden is still on hold until we see updated plans for the library project and community church. 

*The winter Adaview newsletter has gone out to the community.  We have produced out winter program 

fliers - a copy is included with this report. 

*We will be working on our spring-summer program brochure through the winter to have it available in early 

March.  



ADA TOWNSHIP PARKS, RECREATION AND LAND PRESERVATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 

4:00 P.M., ROSELLE PARK, MEETING ROOM 
 1010 GRAND RIVER DR NE, ADA, MICHIGAN 

1. Call meeting to order/roll call

Present: Terwilliger, Steketee, Crosby, Roe, Nowak, Haga,  
Absent:  Damstra, Jacobs, LeBlanc, VandenBerge, Schmottlach  
Staff Present: Ferro, Fitzpatrick, McCormick, Winczewski,  
Public Present: Judy Levick  

2. Approval of agenda

Terwilliger moved to approve agenda.  Steketee supported.  Motion carried unanimously. 

3. Approval of minutes of the September 13th meeting

Terwilliger moved to approve the minutes for the September 13th meeting as written.  Crosby supported.  
Motion carried unanimously.   

4. Review/Approve Parks and Recreation Needs Assessment Final Report

Fitzpatrick stated that approval and recommendation to the Township Board of the Parks & Recreation 
Needs Assessment Final Report is needed. 

4:12 p.m. Jacobs and VandenBerge arrived. 

Ferro stated he felt the national data such as Revenue Per Capita and Cost Recovery on pages 11 & 12 
were useful. 

Fitzpatrick noted that East Grand Rapids data was added since the previous preliminary report. 

Terwilliger stated the report has improved with each revision but it doesn’t seem to include everything the 
Park Director, Fitzpatrick, would like. 

Ferro stated that detailed information regarding Stakeholder Engagement on pages 16 & 17 should be in 
the Appendix but it is not.  

Fitzpatrick stated that the summary reports regarding stakeholder engagement that were reviewed at the 
September meeting need to be in the Appendix. 

Haga reminded everyone that the purpose of the Recreation Needs Assessment is outlined in the first 
paragraph on page i of the Executive Summary.  “The Ada Township Recreation Needs Assessment 
incorporates an analysis of Township-owned and regional recreation facilities and recreation/education 
programs.  The goal of the Assessment is to provide Ada Township with recommendations for the 
development of new parks, the addition of recreation amenities in existing Township parks, and a guide 
for planning future recreation programs and support services.”     

Ferro stated a document like this can lend support in applying for a DNR grant. 

Haga moved to recommend to the Township Board that the Recreation Facilities and Programs Needs 
Assessment Final Report be accepted as a guide for approving recreational needs for Ada Township.  
VandenBerge supported.  Motion passed unanimously.  

III. B. 6



Ada Township Parks, Recreation and Land Preservation Advisory Board 
Minutes of the November 8, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
5. Review of Projects and Timelines for the Capital Improvements Plan Update 
 
Fitzpatrick briefly reviewed funds as outlined in the Director’s Report.  He stated the CIP is for capital 
projects over $10,000.  
 
Fitzpatrick requested a meeting between the Recreation Programs, Services & Facilities Subcommittee 
and the Trails Subcommittee to determine which Ada Park paving projects should be on the CIP.  Also, 
what trail connectors do we want to do and what are we going to market to the public for 2021?  
 
6. Park Director’s Report and Current Project Updates 
 
Fitzpatrick gave a brief update on various projects throughout the township as outlined in the board 
packets.  
 
Fitzpatrick stated Wes Steer of OCBA is retiring.   
 
Crosby stated that a lighter contrasting material is needed behind the Knapp Corner Entry Sign. 
 
Fitzpatrick stated that a formal ribbon cutting and grand opening of the Riverfront Park will be in the 
spring. 
 
VandenBerge asked if any thought has been put into the area next to the amphitheater that dries up.  Ferro 
stated several options are being considered such as drilling a ground water well, an aeration fountain, 
landscape enhancements, and there may be a wall at the back of the stage area of the amphitheater which 
would block the view of the dry area.    
 
5:30 p.m. Jacobs left meeting. 
 
7. Advisory Board Administrative Matters 
 
Roe stated it is time to have new members on this advisory board.  Crosby stated a quorum is needed 
more often. 
  
8. Board Member Comment 
 
Board members wished McCormick farewell for the season.  He will return in the spring.  
 
9. Public Comment 
 
There were no public comments. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 5:35 p.m.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________ 
Jacqueline Smith, Township Clerk 



















ADA TOWNSHIP ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2018, REGULAR MEETING 

A regular meeting of the Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals was held on Tuesday, December 4, 2018, 4:30 
p.m., at the Ada Township Office, 7330 Thornapple River Drive, Ada, Michigan.

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Dixon at 4:30 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Members present:  Dixon, Burton, McNamara, Nuttall and Smith 
Members absent:   
Staff Present:  Bajdek, Ferro, Winczewski  
Public:  5 community members 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by Smith, supported by McNamara, to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by Burton, supported by McNamara, to approve the November 13, 2018, minutes as presented. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Request for the following variances from Article XXV, Landscaping Requirements and Standards:
1.) reduction of required 30-foot wide buffer zone adjacent to residential district to 5.5 feet; and 2.)
reduction of required 20-foot wide greenbelt along Fulton St. right-of-way from 20 feet to 14 feet,
Angela Polizzi with GAFD Properties, LLC, 6650 E. Fulton St., 41-15-28-335-004

Chairperson Dixon recused himself due to conflict of interest.  Vice Chair McNamara invited applicant to speak.  

Angela Polizzi, with GAFD Properties, LLC, (Vitale’s of Ada), stated that she would like variances to keep her 
parking lot as it currently stands.  She would like a variance allowing a reduced greenbelt from the required 20 feet 
from the road right-of-way because there is currently a large buffer zone from the street to where the parking lot 
begins.  Ms. Polizzi stated they maintain this buffer zone and have made the area greener than what it used to be. 
They would like to add pine trees to the front and back of the parking lot but they need a variance before they can 
make any additional landscaping changes.  Ms. Polizzi stated that although there is 5.5 feet of buffer from the 
residential area to the parking lot, that does not take into consideration the railroad area. 

III. B. 9



Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes of December 4, 2018 meeting 
Page 2 of 4 
 
McNamara asked how wide the railroad area is adjacent to the parking lot. 
 
Ferro stated he believes the railroad right-of-way is 100 feet wide as labeled on the original site plan which he then 
distributed to the board members.  
 
McNamara asked for Staff comments. 
 
Ferro summarized the variance requests as outlined in the staff memo.  
   
Ferro stated the standards that need to be met to grant a variance are: 
 

1.) Whether unique physical circumstances exist which cause a practical difficulty in complying with 
the zoning ordinance standards.  The subject property has a long, triangular shape that has an increasingly 
shallow depth from west to east along Fulton St. The shape of the property is unique to the property, compared 
to other sites in the C-2 Commercial district, and causes a practical difficulty in complying with the zoning 
standards, while also meeting the parking needs of the business. 

  
2.) Whether granting the variance would alter the essential character of the area. Approval of the 
requested variances would not alter the essential character of the surrounding area, based on the following 
considerations: 
 
• Much of the parking area is visually separated from the residential neighborhood to the south by the 
retaining wall and the elevated railroad grade between the parking area and the property line.  At the east end of 
the property, where the rail line is not raised above the parking area, additional landscape screening with 7-foot 
tall evergreen trees is proposed. 
 
• Due to the wide right-of-way of Fulton St., the proposed edge of parking is 50-53 feet from the edge of 
pavement on Fulton St., instead of 55 feet if the 20-foot greenbelt standard was satisfied. Considering the 
distance between the highway and the parking area, the requested 2-6 foot relaxation of the pavement setback 
requirement will not be noticeable by passing traffic on the highway. 

  
3.) Whether the circumstances leading to the variances are self-created.  While the applicant could have 
installed the paved parking area in conformance with the previously-approved variance, considering the current 
variance request on its merits, using the same criteria applied to the original variance request, the circumstances 
leading to the variances are not self-created, those circumstances being the awkward triangular shape of the 
property. 

   
4.) Whether amending the zoning ordinance standards is a more appropriate remedy to the situation.  
The unique conditions of the applicant’s property are not a common occurrence, such that a change in the zoning 
rules would be a more appropriate remedy. 
   

 
Ferro stated that staff recommends granting the variances.  
 
The public hearing was opened at 4:47 p.m.    
 
Courtney VanValkenburg of 6730 Brookside Woods Ct. stated she has been an Ada resident for almost twenty 
years.  The construction of Vitale’s and the parking lot has had a serious impact on her and her neighborhood.  The 
removal of trees along the railroad track a year ago was very upsetting.  She and her neighbors can now hear all the 
traffic on Fulton Ave. as a direct result of the clear-cutting of all the trees.  She can see the parking lot and parking 
lot lighting when looking out her front door.  She can see and hear customer’s vehicles and sometimes conversations 



Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes of December 4, 2018 meeting 
Page 3 of 4 
 
by customers in the Vitale’s parking lot.  Ms. VanValkenburg stated that she spoke to the owner last year and was 
told at that time that trees would be planted to help with the noise problem.  She stated that although the current 
proposal is to add 5 trees, she feels it is not nearly enough to make a difference with noise or privacy.  She would 
like to see more trees planted in the proposed area and additional trees planted on the Brookside Woods side of the 
railroad tracks.  Ms. VanValkenburg stated that she does not agree with Ms. Polizzi’s narrative statement comparing 
her variance request to the variance that was granted to the West Village Development.  
 
Ms. Polizzi stated the reason they have not added trees yet is because they did not want to spend money to make 
landscaping changes if there was a possibility they would need to make additional changes later.  She apologized 
for the noise and light generated from her business.  Ms. Polizzi stated they would like to add big evergreen trees 
on the east end to protect the Brookside Woods neighborhood from noise and lights. 
 
Brandon Cortese of 6711 Brookside Woods stated that he has not seen the landscaping plan but is concerned about 
where the trees will be planted.  Mr. Cortese stated his home now looks at a large light and vehicles in the Vitale’s 
parking lot. He requests that the new trees cover the light and parked cars.  Mr. Cortese stated that a year ago, 
Vitale’s came to the ZBA asking for forgiveness regarding unapproved bathroom changes they already made.  He 
is frustrated that this is another case of asking for forgiveness.  Mr. Cortese stated he would like to know why this 
wasn’t done properly in the first place.  
 
Ms. Polizzi stated that some things were lost in translation in the building process which resulted in mistakes being 
made that impact township rules and ordinances.   
     
After no further comments, public hearing was closed at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Ferro suggested reducing the gaps between the evergreen trees proposed on the southeast side of the parking lot by 
adding 2 additional trees.  If 2 trees were added, the gaps would be reduced from 6-7 feet to 2-3 feet.  If a solid 
screen is desirable, that could be done by packing more trees together or adding smaller shrubs between the gaps. 
 
McNamara asked if anything could be done about the lighting.  Ferro stated the lamp post is a high-quality fixture 
that directs non-glaring light vertically down into the parking lot.  He does not feel any changes could be made to 
the current lighting situation.  
 
Smith expressed concern that this situation was self-created.  Had Vitale’s followed the original plan, this meeting 
would not be necessary.  Ferro agreed that is a legitimate concern but something the Board should consider is had 
these variances been presented to them originally, would they have been approved?  Ferro stated that if the original 
plans had been followed, there would still be a noise issue. 
 
Burton stated she is in favor of adding a few more trees to make it denser.   
 
Smith asked Ms. Polizzi how soon she can plant the trees.   Ms. Polizzi stated it depends on the weather and ground 
conditions.  She stated she will plant the 7 ft. evergreens on the southeast side of the parking lot as soon as possible 
and will add 2 additional evergreens.  Ms. Polizzi stated she will know by next week, Tuesday, when the trees can 
be planted and will have the landscape company put it in writing so the details can be shared with the neighbors.           
 

Moved by Burton, supported by Smith, to approve the variances based on the findings that the required 
standards to grant a variance have been met, subject to the following conditions: 

1.) The pavement and parking configuration shall be as shown on the site plan submitted, dated 8/13/18, 
noted as “Update #2, 11/1/18.” 



Ada Township Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes of December 4, 2018 meeting 
Page 4 of 4 
 

2.) A total of 7 evergreen trees will be planted as soon as possible on the southeast side of the parking 
lot. 

 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
Chairman Dixon returned to his seat. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 
There was no correspondence. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved by Nuttall, supported by Dixon, to adjourn at 5:21 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith 
Ada Township Clerk 
 



ADA TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION  
 MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 MEETING 

A meeting of the Ada Township Planning Commission was held on Thursday, September 20, 2018, 7:00 
p.m. at the Ada Township Offices, 7330 Thornapple River Dr., Ada, MI.

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

Present: Butterfield, Burton, Carter, Jacobs, Leisman, Lunn 
Absent: Easter  
Staff Present: Ferro, Bajdek, Winczewski 
Public Present:  7 Members    

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Chairman Leisman suggested to move the Unfinished Business item to after New Business. 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Carter, to approve the agenda as amended.  Motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 16, 2018 MEETING

Moved by Carter, supported by Jacobs, to approve the minutes of the August 16, 2018 meeting as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Special Use Permit for a “Type 2” Home Occupation in the R-3 Medium Density Single-
Family Residential Zoning District, to permit a woodworking operation as a home
occupation, 7567 Fase St. SE, 41-15-34-200-036, Bruce G. & Janet M. Fase Trust

Mike Fase spoke on behalf of the applicant, his father, Bruce Fase.  Mr. Fase summarized his father’s 
request to the board.  He, his son, and his father are the only three employees of this woodworking business. 
They bought a CNC mill which is a woodworking routing machine.  They mainly make furniture and small 
wooden items. 

Commissioners did not have questions or comments.  

Planning Director, Ferro stated Mr. Fase’s property is 12.4 acres on the north side of Fase St. The residence 
and outbuildings on the property are all located at the south end of the property, with the majority of the 
acreage as vacant land behind the property along the Thronapple River and ending at the Grand River. 
The building that would be used for the woodworking shop is 24’ x 36’ (864 sq. ft.), of concrete block 
construction. The building is located about 55 feet from the nearest home on adjoining property, to the east, 
and about 155 feet from the adjoining home to the west. 

Because the home occupation involves use of an accessory building and may generate customer/client 
traffic to the residence, the proposed home occupation is classified in the zoning rules as a “Type II” Home 
Occupation that is subject to a special use permit approval by the Planning Commission.  

Leisman opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. There were no public comments. The public hearing was 
closed.  

Ferro stated there are certain standards which a “Type II” Home Occupation must adhere to in addition to 
the general standards for special use permit approval.  Those standards are outlined on page 2 in the staff 

III. B. 10



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 2 of 9 
 
memo and he believes Mr. Fase’s business meets these standards.  
 
Butterfield inquired about what kinds of waste the business generates and how do they dispose of it.  Mr. 
Fase stated the vast majority of their waste is sawdust and they use it for composting.  There will not be a 
need for a dumpster. 
 
Ferro stated he visited the site and had a demonstration of the equipment in operation.  Ferro stated 
that while all of the woodworking equipment was in operation, he walked completely around the 
outside of the accessory building, and the loudest sound he heard was a small window air 
conditioner installed on the west wall of the building. Very little sound was coming from the inside 
of the building, so little that he does not believe that it would be discernable from the adjoining 
properties.  
 
Moved by Carter, supported by Jacobs, to approve the Special Use Permit for a “Type 2” Home Occupation 
in the R-3 Medium Density Single Family Residential Zoning District, to permit a woodworking operation 
as a home occupation, subject to the following four conditions: 
 
1. Customer visits to the premises shall be permitted by appointment only, and there shall not be 
published or advertised retail business hours in any print or electronic media, such as classified newspaper 
advertising, handout flyers, web site or social media page. 

2. Operation of power woodworking equipment shall only be permitted to take place within the 
concrete block accessory building. Other outbuildings on the property may only be used for lumber 
storage and curing. 

3. Operation of power woodworking equipment shall be limited to no more than 8 hours per day, 
and shall be permitted only between the hours of 8 a.m. and 8 p.m. 

4. Noise generated shall be maintained at the current level and shall not have any significant adverse 
effects on neighboring properties.  

Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 

2. Special Use Permit for a veterinary care office, excluding boarding services, in the C-1 
PVM Overlay District, Unit 7, Ada West Commercial Condominium, 7163 Headley St. 
SE, 41-15-28-479-007, All 4 Sallie LLC 

 
Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, representing applicant, All 4 Sallie LLC, presented a brief overview of 
the project.  They are proposing a 5,120 sq. ft. 2-story building for the use of veterinary care on the first 
floor and a business office on the second floor.  
 
Frank Marshall, All 4 Sallie LLC, stated he represents the developers and he is also a tenant.  Mr. 
Marshall stated they requested a special use previously for an existing veterinary business in the township 
and now they are looking to move to this new location.  The veterinarian operation is not really changing 
other than a little additional square footage.  It will be a three-exam room veterinarian practice on the first 
floor.  Mr. Marshall stated the upstairs is a business office and will be leased to his own company, 
Marshall Associates, which is a provider of environmental and site development services for banking, real 
estate and development markets.  Marshall Associates did the site plan for this project.  Mr. Marshall 
stated the veterinarian tenants have been in Ada for 8 or 9 years.  They are a small animal veterinary 
practice which means there will not be any large animals such as sheep, cows, horses, or other large 
animals.      



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 3 of 9 
 
 
Chairman opened the public hearing at 7:37 p.m. There were no comments.  Public hearing was closed.  
 
Leisman stated the PVM Development Plan for this project is further on the agenda but can be heard now. 
 
Ken Dixon continued with a summary of the project.  Dixon stated the outside of the building will be very 
similar to other new buildings in that area.  There are two part-time veterinarians working in this office 
which for parking purposes, equates to one full-time veterinarian.  Adding in the employees of the vet 
office and the upstairs tenants, there is a requirement of 20 parking stalls.  With the PVM reduction, that 
brings the requirement down to 8 parking stalls.  They meet the parking requirement at 8 stalls.    
 
Dixon stated the canopies on the front and rear of the building protrude slightly into the setback 
requirements so a departure is being requested.  They are also asking for a departure in lot coverage as 
they will be slightly over the 50% maximum requirement by having lot coverage at 53.6%. 
 
Bajdek gave an overview of his staff memo regarding the subject unit.  Bajdek stated the building is being 
developed as a “Village Shop Lot” under the PVM district provisions.  Veterinary care offices, excluding 
boarding services, are permitted in the C-1 Village Business zoning district, with approval of a special use 
permit by the Planning Commission, which must comply with the general special use permit standards of 
the Zoning Ordinance, which were listed in the staff memo.  Per Sec. 78-477, Permitted uses by lot type 
of the Planned Village Mixed-Use Overlay District, all uses in the Village Business district either 
permitted by right or by special use are allowable for Village Shop Lots; the same special use permit 
procedure is required to be adhered to.  Bajdek stated there are no special use permit standards specific to 
veterinary care offices.  

Bajdek stated it does appear that all the general special use permit standards, which were addressed in the 
applicant’s narrative statement, have been satisfied. 

Bajdek stated parking is located in the “common element” of the condominium and shared by all of the 
condo units in the development.  A total of 198 parking spaces are provided in the “common element” 
parking area of the Ada West Commercial Condo development.  125 were required for the subject 
development (based on the PVM reduction provision standards) at the time of site plan approval for 
completion of the shared parking area.  It should be noted that 7 additional parking spaces are located on 
the Spectrum Health facility site (Unit 10 of the development).  At the time of site plan approval for the 
ten-unit Ada West Commercial Condominium development, the construction of a 4,800 sq. ft. 
retail/office building was assumed.  Based on retail use for the ground level and office use for the upper 
level, 20 parking spaces were required (8 parking spaces with the PVM reduction.) 

Bajdek stated approval of the Special Use Permit is recommended subject to the two conditions as 
outlined in the staff memo.  

Bajdek stated, as for the PVM District dimensional standards, there are three departures needed:  

• The proposed lot coverage is 53.6%, which is greater than the 50% maximum requirement. 
• The proposed front canopy/covered porch varies from 4 feet 2 inches to 5 feet from the street/front 

property line, which exceeds the minimum 10-foot street/front yard setback requirement. 
• The proposed rear canopy/covered porch varies from 4 feet 6 inches to 6 feet 2 inches from the rear 

property line, which exceeds the minimum 10-foot rear yard setback requirement. 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 4 of 9 
 
Bajdek stated, per the Zoning Ordinance, front porches may extend up to ten feet into street yards 
provided they are at least eight feet deep; however, the depth of the proposed front porch does not satisfy 
this requirement. 

Bajdek stated the building elevation drawings depict gooseneck-type lighting.  In addition, pendant can 
lights are planned under the entry canopies/covered porches.   
 
Bajdek stated the landscape plan provides a mix of evergreen and deciduous shrubs, ornamental grasses, 
and perennials primarily concentrated to the front and rear foundations of the building.  However, 
additional landscaping material is required to screen the mechanical equipment pad, located on the west 
side of the building, from the view of Headley Street. 
 
Bajdek stated the staff is recommending approval, subject to the three departures & 4 conditions as stated 
in the staff memo.  

Butterfield inquired if there is enough greenspace for the dogs to relieve themselves.  Mr. Marshall stated 
yes, there is actually 10% more greenspace than where their office is currently located.  

Carter inquired why this requires a Special Use Permit. Bajdek stated because it is a veterinarian office.  
Carter wondered if horses may be seen in the future.  Leisman stated that language can be added that 
approval is only for a “small animal” veterinary care office.   

Jacobs asked what kinds of pets are typically seen in the vet office.  Mr. Marshall stated small companion 
pets and the occasional “pocket pets” like hamsters, gerbils, etc.  Also seen on occasion are birds and 
snakes.   

Moved by Carter, supported by Jacobs, to approve the special use permit for a small-animal veterinary 
care office, excluding boarding services, subject to the following findings, conditions and departures: 
 
The Planning Commission hereby makes the following findings: 

1. a. The proposed development plan, as modified by the conditions of approval listed      
below, requires the following “departures” from the standards of the PVM district, which are 
hereby approved: 

 
     Departures from: 
 

     1) Sec. 78-476(a) – Maximum lot coverage. 
     2) Sec. 78-476(a) – Minimum street setback. 
     3) Sec. 78-476(a) – Minimum rear setback. 

b.  The above departures result in a plan that complies with the spirit and intent of the PVM 
District to a greater degree than would be the case without authorization of the departures. 

 c.  The proposed alternative is consistent with the purpose and intent of the PVM District. 

d.  The proposed alternative, in comparison to conformance with the PVM district standards, will 
not have a detrimental impact on adjacent property or the surrounding neighborhood. 

e. The proposed alternative is necessary and appropriate to accommodate a superior design of the 
proposed development. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 5 of 9 
 
 
 
2. Approval of a PVM District Development Plan for the subject unit (Unit 7 of Ada West Commercial 

Condominium). 
 

3. Any onsite ‘pet grooming’ shall be an ancillary use to the veterinary care office use. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  

 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Carter, to approve the PVM Development Plan for a 5,120 sq. ft., two-
story, two-tenant building, for small-animal veterinary care and professional offices, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
 1. The building and site improvements shall be completed substantially as shown on the plan set 

titled “All 4Sallie, LLC,” (civil drawings) dated August 20, 2018 and “All 4 Sallie Building” 
(architectural drawings) dated August 23, 2018, except as modified in accordance with these 
conditions of approval. 

 2. Any exterior building mounted light fixtures shall qualify as “full-cutoff” control of light 
emission or of a low light intensity non-glaring style, subject to approval of the Planning 
Department.  Fixture specifications shall be submitted for approval, prior to building permit 
issuance. 

 3. The landscape plan shall be modified showing additional landscape plantings to screen the 
mechanical equipment pad, located on the west side of the building, from the view of Headley 
Street, subject to review and approval of the Planning Department, prior to issuance of any 
building permits. 

 4.  A special use permit for a veterinary care office, excluding boarding services, being granted 
by the Planning Commission.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Review of PVM District Development Plan, Construction of a 5,120 sq. ft., two-story, 
two-tenant building, for veterinary care and professional offices, Unit 7, Ada West 
Commercial Condominium, 7163 Headley St. SE, 41-15-28-479-007, All 4 Sallie, LLC 

 
This item was reviewed and voted on in conjunction with Item 2 under Public Hearing.  See above. 

 
2. Review PVM District Development Plan, Construction of a 6,412 sq. ft., two-story 

building to be used for retail, service and office uses, Bldg. A8/Unit 8, River Street 
Commons Condominium, 472 Ada Dr. SE, 41-15-34-129-008, Dixon Architecture on 
behalf of 460 Ada Drive, LLC 
 

Ken Dixon, Dixon Architecture, presented the development plan.  Dixon stated he was previously here for 
a project with the A1 building.  Since then, the A1 building and the A8 building have become under the 
same ownership.  Building A1 and A8 are being looked at as one building. Dixon reviewed the plans on 
the overhead projector.  Dixon stated he is requesting two departures.  The first departure is somewhat 
nullified since the two buildings are now under one ownership.  That departure was for lot area.  Unit A8 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 6 of 9 
 
is only 3,740 sq. ft, and does not meet the minimum required 5,000 sq. ft.  Dixon stated another departure 
being requested is for building frontage.  The frontage percentage along Settlers Street is 89.4%, just slightly 
less than the 90% minimum requirement.  

Leisman asked how building A8 became so small.  Dixon stated it was a smaller lot from the start but as 
other buildings were getting planned, more and more square footage needed to be taken from this lot to 
satisfy the design of the other lots.  

Carter asked if these two buildings would combine under one parcel.  Dixon stated it is the owner’s intent 
to keep the parcels as-is, just like Heidi Christine’s property.   

Bajdek stated that approval is recommended based on the two departures and four conditions as outlined 
in the staff memo. 
 
Bajdek reiterated that lot area at 3,740 is under the minimum required 5,000 sq. ft.  Approval of a 
departure from this standard is recommended. 
 
Moved by Jacobs, supported by Carter, to approve the development plan as recommended, subject to the 
following departures and conditions: 
 
1. The Planning Commission hereby makes the following findings: 

 a.  The proposed development plan, as modified by the conditions of approval listed below, 
requires the following “departures” from the standards of the PVM district, which are hereby 
approved: 

  1) Sec. 78-476(a) – Minimum lot size. 

  2) Sec. 78-476(a) – Minimum frontage percentage.  

b.  The above departures result in a plan that complies with the spirit and intent of the PVM 
District to a greater degree than would be the case without authorization of the departures. 

 c.  The proposed alternative is consistent with the purpose and intent of the PVM District. 

d.  The proposed alternative, in comparison to conformance with the PVM district standards, will 
not have a detrimental impact on adjacent property or the surrounding neighborhood. 

e. The proposed alternative is necessary and appropriate to accommodate a superior design of the 
proposed development. 

2. The proposed development plan for a 6,412 sq. ft. commercial building is hereby approved, 
subject to the following conditions: 

 a. The building and site improvements shall be completed substantially as shown on the plan set 
titled “River Street Commons A8 Building,” (civil drawings) dated September 13, 2018 and 
“River Street Commons A8 Building” (architectural drawings) dated September 13, 2018, 
except as modified in accordance with these conditions of approval. 

 b. Any exterior building mounted light fixtures shall qualify as “full-cutoff” control of light 
emission or of a low light intensity non-glaring style, subject to approval of the Planning 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 7 of 9 
 

Department.  Fixture specifications shall be submitted for approval, prior to building permit 
issuance. 

 c. Floodplain development permits shall be issued by the Michigan DEQ and Ada Township, 
prior to issuance of a building permit. 

 d.  The parking calculations, on the civil drawings, being updated to accurately reflect the planned 
retail use on the ground level of the subject building. 

e.  Buildings A1 & A8 must remain in common ownership, unless waived by the Planning                                             
      Commission. 

 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

3. Site Plan Review, Revisions to Marketplace Square Condominium, to add additional 
land for 43 parking spaces and re-located driveway access to M-21, 7590 East Fulton 
St., Parcel No. 41-15-34-127-003, Geld, LLC. 

 
Steve Tietsma of Progressive AE presented and gave a brief overview of the revisions.  Mr. Tietsma  
stated they have worked extensively with MDOT and have done traffic studies.  This revised plan is 
approved by MDOT.  The driveway changes will allow truck traffic easier access to and from the 
property, thus keeping them off the village roads.  Mr. Tietsma reviewed the utility plan and  
landscape plan.   
 
Ferro stated a revised landscape plan was submitted today after it was discovered there was a conflict 
between large canopy trees and overhead power lines. (Ferro handed out the new landscape plan). 
 
The driveway and parking plan comply with all applicable zoning regulations, with the exception of the 
minimum “greenbelt” width of 20 feet between parking and the M-21 right-of-way. The parking area 
setback proposed ranges from 5 feet to 18 feet, which is greater than the 0-foot setback of the Kingma’s 
Market building located to the west. 

Ferro stated this same issue existed when the plans for the Heidi Christine’s Salon site and the plans for 
completion of the Ada West Commercial Center parking area were reviewed and approved. In the case of 
the Heidi Christine’s approval, the Planning Commission approved a 5-foot pavement setback, with the 
assumption that the greenbelt requirement did not apply to PVM district plans. In the case of the West 
Commercial Center parking area, a condition of approval stated that: 

“The conflict between the parking area setback from the Fulton St. right-of-way and the minimum 
greenbelt width standard shall be resolved prior to construction through either the approval of a zoning 
variance or an amendment to the zoning regulations.” 

This condition was not addressed or satisfied before the parking area was completed. 

To address this procedural issue, Ferro stated he has drafted a potential zoning ordinance text amendment 
that would resolve this conflict and directed the Commissioners to the last page in their packets.  After 
board discussion, Leisman stated he would be OK with a zoning text amendment for a 5-foot pavement 
setback in the PVM overlay for this project but, in the future, he would like to see more than 5 feet from 
the area where this project ends all the way along M-21 going east to the river. 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 8 of 9 
 
Moved by Burton, supported by Carter, to approve the site plan review, revisions to Marketplace Square 
Condominium, to add additional land for 43 parking spaces and re-located driveway access to M-21.   

Motion passed unanimously.        

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. Proposed Amendment to Article XX-A – Planned Village Mixed-Use Overlay (PVM) 
District – Development plan application requirements and review and approval 
procedure, to add provisions pertaining to duration of development plan approval, 
expiration of plan approval and extensions of plan approval 

 
Ferro stated the Township Board postponed action on this zoning ordinance text amendment, and referred 
the amendment back to the Planning Commission due to two concerns: 1.) Concern with potential for 
granting an unlimited number of approval extensions. 2.)  Ambiguity and lack of definition for what is 
meant by the phrase “diligent progress” as used in the proposed amendment.  
 
Ferro gave an overview of similar provisions from several surrounding communities and a draft of proposed 
changes to address the concerns. 
 
Moved by Carter, supported by Butterfield, to recommend to the Township Board the following revisions 
to the proposed ordinance amendment:  
 
1. Reword Par. g(1) to read as follows: 

(1) A PVM district development plan approval granted on or after the effective date of the 
amendment ordinance enacting this Sec. 78-480 (g) shall be valid for a period of eighteen (18) months 
from the date of approval by the planning commission or zoning administrator, whichever granted the 
original approval. Plans granted approval prior to the effective date of the amendment ordinance enacting 
this Sec. 78-480 (g) shall be valid for a period of eighteen (18) months following said effective date.  

2. Reword Par. g(2) to read as follows: 

(2) If a building permit has been issued within eighteen (18) months from the date of plan approval, 
the plan approval shall remain valid so long as the building permit remains valid. If no building permit 
has been issued within eighteen (18) months from the date of plan approval, the development plan 
approval shall be deemed expired and no longer valid. 

3. Reword Par. g(4) to read as follows: 

(4) A maximum of two (2) one (1) year extensions of development plan approval may be granted. 

Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ada Township Planning Commission 
Minutes of the September 20, 2018 Meeting 
Page 9 of 9 
 
VIII. COMMISSION MEMBER / STAFF REPORTS  
 
Leisman stated he attended Jim’s Michigan Association of Planning Conference presentation regarding 
village redevelopment held here earlier today.  Jim and the others who spoke did a great job.    
 
  IX. PUBLIC COMMENT - None 
 
   X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion by Jacobs, supported by Butterfield, to adjourn meeting.  Motion passed unanimously.  Meeting 
adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Smith 
Ada Township Clerk 






































































































































































	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE
	Agenda 01-14-19.pdf
	7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DRIVE




